
REGIONAL WATER DISTRICT
MEETING MINUTES

April 1, 2004

A meeting of the Water District Commission was held on Thursday, April 1, 2004 at the
NRPC, Nashua.  Present were:  Chairperson- Marilyn Peterman (Amherst), George
Woodbury (Hollis), Ken Massey (Hudson), Cynthia Herman (Milford), Brian McCarthy
(Nashua), Jeremy Lamson (Pittsfield), Karen White (Staff Research – Bedford), Vice
Chairman-Fred Britton (Nashua), Kevin Waterhouse (Windham), Jean Guy Bergeron
(Pelham), Ray Peeples (Litchfield), Mike Scanlon (Bedford), Steve Williams (NRPC)
and Andre Garron (6:55 p.m. Londonderry)

GUEST:  Atty Van Loan

Chairperson Peterman opened the meeting at 6:45 p.m. with public input.

PUBLIC SESSION

Barbara Pressley (Nashua) – Wanted to praise the Nashua Board of Alderman, as they
had not had a chance to review the Charter.  Barbara explained that City Government
works more like the State of NH.  The Board 



Regional Water District Meeting Minutes – April 1, 2004 -  Page 2

stated that was back in December.  Chairperson Peterman stated at that time, we were in
agreement and we did ask for money, but this was the consensus of the group.  When we
requested the money, some Towns said they were not interested in joining and they
haven’t taken part in any of the discussions or changes for the Charter.  There are
representatives here who spoke for other small towns not small customer base, but
resource in their own towns including Amherst.  We appreciated Hollis representation
here on the committee.  The committee realized half way through the Charter process that
the committee felt it was necessary to hire our own attorney.   George Woodbury stated
he was not questioning the need for the funding.

Chairperson Peterman stated we would entertain your changes in the letter.  George
Woodbury stated that the letter in its present form would turn off the selectmen and any
hope for funding.  Chairperson Peterman asked if George has a revision to Karen’s e-mail
and I too have recommended some changes to it.  Depending on the outcome of this
evenings meeting, we will try to convince them to make this contribution in the best
interest of the Town of Hollis as Hollis has played an important role on this committee
and will play an important role in the District if it is formed.

George Woodbury reminded the committee that he understands this.  Chairperson
Peterman stated that most of the Towns with fewer customers are very important to the
District and we hope that Hollis will have a member on the board and agree to join. I also
hope they will be an iatrical part of what we see evolving getting to the end of this
process.  With the numerous articles in the paper that knowing that Nashua has been
discussing this for many weeks and they come here tonight with their suggestions, I hope
that we will form this District.

MOTION:  made by Fred Britton to work with Karen White and send out a
copy of the letter to all committee members.

Karen White reminded the committee that George was not the first representative from
Hollis when this group succeeded from the Barbara Pressley group when we first met in
Bedford.  The Town Manager of Hollis helped draw up the Memo of Understanding and
other agreements and sat with most of the towns and said we are going to need money.
Realizing it was December and realizing it is hard to get warrant article on the ballot and
it also being the end of some Towns fiscal budget, the committee decided to put this off.
There certainly was no decision that no funds would be needed and that no funds would
be requested.  That is a misunderstanding or misperception.

Chairperson Peterman stated when the District is formed and we go forward with
bonding authority all of the communities will be reimbursed.  The Town of Bedford has
spent a great deal in personnel and hospitality more than say the City of Nashua. We all
understand budgets, but we hope the Town of Hollis can find the $5,000 contribution.
Ken Massey from Hudson stated if I were to follow Hollis lead on pro rating per
customer, as Hudson has only 1 customer it has cost us a fortune.  The Town of Hudson
saw the benefit of this for the Regional Water District forming and so we made the
contribution that we are committed to see this District formed.



Regional Water District Meeting Minutes – April 1, 2004 -  Page 3

Jean Guy Bergeron stated we got involved with the committee when I heard that there
would be no cost for the Town.  Then when the Charter committee felt we needed our
own attorneys rather than using Nashua’s attorneys, and that the Town would be
reimbursed after we received the revenue bond, which would occur after the Charter, was
signed and the District was formed, that is when I convinced my Town to contribute.

Chairperson Peterman stated that is pretty much how it evolved other than the earlier
discussions.  We did discuss the need for money and as Karen described we postponed it
until we needed to hire the attorneys.   Jean Guy Bergeron stated it was not decided at a
round table meeting in Nashua.     Chairperson Peterman stated she was not sure of the
course of events, but the committee is here and we are where we are.

MOTION:  made by Fred Britton to have Karen White work with George
Woodbury to finalize the letter.  Seconded by Jeremy Lamson.  Vote taken,
all in favor.  Motion passed.

Chairperson Peterman stated there are some Towns like Amherst that doesn’t begin their
fiscal year until July.  Karen White asked the committee members whose fiscal year has
already started to please send a check.  Jean Guy Bergeron stated at his last selectmen’s
meeting he did ask for the second $5,000 and that is in the works, I wasn’t able to get a
check for this evening, but I will send it on.

Brian McCarthy from Nashua has handed out an 8 page document which is the
deliberation of the aldermanic committee and their recommendation for changes, attached
to it is a draft of the Charter with mark-ups with all of the changes in it so you can see
what they look like in whole sections.  What I would like to do if it is okay with the
Chairperson, I would like to go through the Charter page by page and show you what the
changes are and if people have questions mark it off on your copies so we can go back to
them so we can get through this, as I have to leave early, but I am sure Fred Britton and
Kathy Hersh can answer any of the other questions the committee may have.

Atty Van Loan commented since he participated with Nashua on the changes, in echoing
what Barbara Pressley said, I am not familiar with everything that the Nashua Board of
Aldermen did, but I did have the opportunity to sit in with the committee on Monday
night and I listened to their concerns and the issues that they raised, and 99% of them,
without me being in a position to say how everyone on this committee felt, because I
don’t have the authority, I was simply able to express my opinion on various items as to
what I assume and expected might be issues and problems with the group and other areas
where I thought they would not be a problem.  I can tell you that as we run through these
things and I can jump in as you go through them as Brian introduces them, in almost
every case, I don’t have a problem because I consider most of them to be either an
improvement or an area that we might have missed or a change that is of not great
significance and probably doesn’t make any real difference to most of you, but for one
reason or another was important to the Nashua Board of Aldermen.   I can tell you that I
think that most of the changes are not problematic.



Regional Water District Meeting Minutes – April 1, 2004 -  Page 4

Chairperson Peterman said thank you very much and I was glad you were able to attend
that meeting.

Brian McCarthy stated the first change is the name change; the suggestion was to make it
as “The Merrimack Regional Water District”.

Brian stated on Pg 5 – the suggestion CIP and RP be 20-year plans.   This came from Mr.
Sansoucy who is planning his submissions to the PUC to go with a 20-year plan Karen
White asked Brian to explain who Mr. Sansoucy is.  Brian stated, Mr. Sansoucy is the
engineering consultant that Nashua had hired to develop the file for the PUC.  The
comments in here are from the board and also from discussions with Mr. Sansoucy and
Atty Upton who is doing the filing for us and also Atty Van Loan who discussed it with
the group this week.

Atty Van Loan stated that Mr. Sansoucy educated me as to what his concerns with the
Charter are, although I consider some of the things he wanted to put into the Charter to be
not typical government items, his view of life is that he has to go to the PUC and
convince them that this eminate domain action is in the public interest and one of the
ways that he intends to demonstrate that it is in the public interest is to use the Charter
and to show how the Charter defines what the District will do and how the Charter sets-
up goals and responsibilities to act in the public interest, that is the reason why some of
the things you will hear that are recommended to be put in the Charter, I would not have
thought necessarily needed to be in there, but that is his rational for it and as far as I am
concerned, it is not a problem

Brian stated moving on Pg 6 – at the end of Article 4, there was a significant discussion
about the wording of the boundaries.  After a discussion with Atty Van Loan, what came
out of it was that the phrase, but no less than annually at the end didn’t seem to make
much sense.  The map should be updated when they need to be updated.

Atty Van Loan stated another edit on Pg 6 there is an error in Article 5 sub paragraph b),
it says after August 31, 2004, that should be after June 1, 2005, because we changed the
dates there and we failed to pick up that change.  That is the point in which eligible
parties can become members without a vote of the BOD.

Brian stated on Pg 7 – there was a question regarding eminate domain rights after
someone withdraws from the District and we added a sentence just to clarify.  We don’t
believe that you could actually conclude those rights anyway.  The sentence just clarifies
that if someone withdraws can in fact take the assets in their Town from the District after
they have withdrawn.  Chairperson Peterman asked Atty Van Loan is that clear as I
remember Milford was concerned about this.  Karen White responded if you withdraw
from membership in the District and the District still has some pipelines in your
community, your community could purchase those pipelines from the District.

Brian stated on Pg 7 at the bottom there may be some contention over.  There was a
strong feeling on our board that the CEO should not be a voting member of the BOD and



Regional Water District Meeting Minutes – April 1, 2004 -  Page 5

that change is reflected there.  We did have some discussion that at a minimum we would
like to see that language reflect that the CEO cannot vote to break a tie.  In the
discussions we had at this committee level, the desire was to have the CEO record a
position on issues where votes are taken.  The BOA in Nashua didn’t think he should be
the one to decide those issues and therefore if it is a tie probably the board should
deliberate it further until they reach a consensus.

Brian stated on Pg 7 - voting by director.  Alderman Bolton stated this was a little
confusing when we say voting by member and voting by customer and one of the global
changes that is in here is to change all references to voting by customer or customers and
to change the whole reference of voting by member to be voting by director.

Brian stated on Pg 8 - paragraph e) the language to allow the director to waive the salary
and that they have to do so if they are required to by the Town.  On the bottom of pg 8
there are some provisions on rules that have to do with a couple of things that we had
discussed.  One was not requiring seconds for a vote by customer and we believe you
shouldn’t need seconds at all as we don’t have rules that require them.  The other is a
provision that allows if the Governing body of a Town appoints, elects or designates
whatever a delegation that constitutes its voter authority, that delegation is allowed to be
present for public and non-public sessions of the BOD and the voting director is allowed
to call for a recess before votes in order to consult with that delegation.   Chairperson
Peterman asked the committee if that is doable in a business setting to recess to have
these meetings.  I don’t object to them, I am just wondering about the timing of decisions
and things like that that have to get done   Brian stated that the recess should be 5
minutes.  Chairperson Peterman said she understands that, but it could also be a day.
Brian stated they shouldn’t be a day.   Atty Van Loan stated that is why it says subject to
the call of the chair.

Cynthia Herman asked about e) the salary.  Any director may waive such salary and shall
do so if required by law.   Is the point of that so that employees or governing body
members can be a part of the appointment?  Brian answered yes.

Brian stated on Pg 11 top paragraph a clarification of quorum for vote by customer. The
two changes at the bottom of pg 11, change to Item C) is an item from Mr. Sansoucy who
said that we left out fees and charges in addition to rates and tariffs.   D) was a procedural
item that I thought of, which is basically if the vote by customer is to work then the
subsidiary motion that goes with the main motion have to have basically the same voting
as the main motion.

Atty Van stated on Pg 11 j-1 c) – the admission to membership in the District after June
1, 2005 needs to be inserted.

Brian stated on Pg 12 some language was added based on a discussion regarding what to
do about making sure that critical buffer lands are protected and we added a clause that
basically requires for property that is within 400 ft of surface water bodies a 2/3 vote by
both director and customer to sell them.



Regional Water District Meeting Minutes – April 1, 2004 -  Page 6

Brian stated on Pg 14 at the top and on Pg 15  there was some clarifying language
required about where hearings would be held in order to allow for public participation
and those two sentences clarify that.  In the powers section some there is some
generalization and a lot of these come from Mr. Sansoucy where we had neglected to talk
about treatment or transmission and that is reflected in paragraph e and f and the other
services that we may purchase in paragraph g and two additions in paragraph s and t,
which are to employ auditors, attorney’s and other consultants and the ability to develop
policy and accept contribution in aid of construction (CIAC) which would be one of the
powers we would need to have.

Brian stated on Pg 18 - Mr. Sansoucy had pointed out that one of the things we had in
here was the ability to add money to the rate to generate surplus revenue credits and he
pointed out that we really cannot do that due to concerns with laws since we will have a
bonding system and we will be generating essentially surplus money to spend on other
things from the capital.  He took out the capital reserve funds in place of deliberately
creating surplus revenue.  In surplus revenue credits, there were two references in the
beginning to add capital requirements, which goes with the establishment of the capital
funds.  There was an inconsistency between the wording that is not otherwise identified
in the Districts CIP and then further down in paragraph c) it actually says that in order to
do this you have to put it in the CIP.  So any project would be in the CIP and  Mr.
Sansoucy also pointed out that we cannot take surplus and turn it back to the ratepayers
as a direct rebate.  We would essentially have to lower the rate and spend down.
Chairperson Peterman asked if that changes the intent of the surplus credits?  Brian stated
it deletes paragraph f) which was the rebate to ratepayers and deletes one item from the
introduction.

Brian stated there are two other issues that came up here had to do with how the credits
are distributed and re-distributed upon withdrawal of a member.  Brian stated the text that
was in here, we distributed based on balances at the time of withdrawal which basically
said anyone who had used their surplus revenue credits at the time that the member
withdrew was not entitled to any of the distribution of the leftover credits.  So we just
changed that to reflect back to how the credits are initial distributed and have it done that
way.  I had some questions about distribution and after talking to Karen she remembered
it being different from the text in the Draft on Feb 12th.  The text divided it up by
revenues and there are some technical problems in that the rates vary from region to
region and recollection was that we meant to do it by distribution of customers and the
proposal is to change it back to proportion of customers.

Ken Massey asked Brian the reason for deleting f) Brian stated we couldn’t take money
that was generated by the rate and to generate direct rebates.  Atty Van Loan stated that
he was swayed by comments from Mr. Sansoucy that we would not be able to do it, but
even if was technically possible it would be a big red flag to the bonding authorities that
you have a Charter that in essence implies that you can raise rates above what you really
need to have them be so you can use tax exempt bonding to borrow money in order to
provide a rebate to your ratepayers.



Regional Water District Meeting Minutes – April 1, 2004 -  Page 7

Karen White stated so we can still use of surplus revenue credits for improvements in our
Towns, but not for a cash rebate.  Brian McCarthy stated the District couldn’t write
checks.

Brian stated on Pg 21 – COI, there was some discussion if the District needs to buy a
Right of Way or an easement or a parcel of land that is owned by the director there is no
provision to pay the director the fair market value for that piece of property and the
solution was to delete a portion of it.  George Woodbury stated now I cannot accept
preferred services, benefits, gifts or concessions from anybody even some outfit out of
the country.  Brian suggested you propose another amendment.   Karen White asked
about the paragraph on gifts as it was of no consequence.  Brian stated that is still there.

Brian stated Article 18; there was a request that one of the hearings on the RP be held in
Nashua.

Brian stated on Pg 23 paragraph 6 - details a request that the RP examine a detailed plan
of ground water supplies and other water supplies in both the Merrimack River basin and
in other basins that are used as supplies.  This basically directs us to consider all the lands
that we should be considering.  Paragraph 7 addresses the concern that we had talked
about several times, which I thought we had language in there, which I think fell out at
some point which is to make sure that the RP and CIP give priority to the maintenance of
the existing infrastructure.  Karen White stated we talked about it.  Brian stated I think we
had it in at some point, but it fell out of the draft.  So that paragraph and the succeeding
one on Pg 24.  Paragraph 4, there was no frequency of review for the CIP specified, so
we put that to a year.

Brian stated in Article 19 on page 25 – there was a concern that the language of
supported by basically gives the operations group veto authority over the BOD and
Alderman Bolton had proposed changing that to made after consideration of.

Brian stated on Pg 26 at the bottom is just another case of doing electronic posting for
notification.

Brian stated on Pg 29 in Article 23 - this one I think actually is of interest to communities
other than Nashua, which is that there was a discussion over the difference between
customers and connections.  The fact that we have multifamily homes where there is one
meter for in some cases 275 condos.  In a detailed discussion basically it came down to
the empowerment of the actual consumers of the water to do things with regard to the
water system and what we thought was appropriate was to change the 1000 customers to
1000 registered voters from member communities.  This doesn’t make a lot of difference
in Nashua, but it may be in other towns.  Chairperson Peterman stated it may in other
Town.  If you have 5 members or 17 members and 1000 other voters that have literally no
interest, they do because of the resource, but they don’t necessarily have the same interest
as lets say Nashua’s 25,000 customers.  Brian stated all it allows them to do is propose an
amendment and make the BOD read it and hold a public hearing.



Regional Water District Meeting Minutes – April 1, 2004 -  Page 8

Andre Garron stated who would check the names of those 1000 petitioners?  Chairperson
Peterman stated the Supervisor of the Check List for each Town.  Ray Peeples stated it
doesn’t say a community; it could be communities, so there could be a cross over.
Chairperson Peterman stated this is a detail that we can figure out.

Brian stated that was all the changes, I will caution you that the issue of whether a request
will be made for a change in the governing section, particularly to the number of directors
that represent Nashua, no decision has been made on that and the committee chose after
going through the rest of the Charter to wait on that until we can discuss it with the
Mayor.

Chairperson Peterman asked if there are any questions or comments for Brian.

Ken Massey stated there is one typo on page 24 b) 4 should say CIP shall be.   Ken stated
based on a lot of the things at the joint meeting I am not surprised at this.  The two that I
feel bear discussion.  The first one is the surplus revenue credit on pg 18, I don’t think
ultimately any formula is going to be mathematically accurate and I could argue that by
changing to the way it is the surplus revenue credit would be distributed based on the
customers, that Hudson would subsidize all the other towns and cities, because we would
have significant purchase of water, but we have one customer.  We have defined
customer as the person who pays the bill.

Brian McCarthy responded, anticipating that you would have that argument, you also
have the surplus revenue credits are those which are generated by collecting from
customers under the rate and Hudson is not subjected to the water rate, rather to the bulk
water agreement which should be generated in such a way that it itself generates the
surplus.  Ken stated correct but, at the moment depending on how the District would
choose to deal with it, the fee that we have to pay on Pennichuck for our water is a
multiple of the individual ratepayer and we incur a cost to transmit water through our
system to Litchfield and Pelham and we cannot accurately define what our cost are, we
are using some industry recognized standards.  We could or couldn’t be subsidizing the
cost of that water.  Brian commented that the way I would prefer to handle that with bulk
water agreements is to structure the agreements themselves in such a way that we true up
the cost at the end of the fiscal year and determine to the best of our ability if there is a
surplus on your particular agreement that should be adjusted in your last payment and
that in your bulk water contract.  We cannot do that on a per customer arrangement, but
can do it on bulk water adjust the rate.

Cynthia Herman asked doesn’t that have to be written into the language of that contract.
Ken and Brian both answered yes.   Cynthia commented that Milford just signed their
contract.  Ken commented that when you signed your contract it said it is binding on
Pennichuck and its successors.  Cynthia stated it did.

Karen White asked Ken if this is acceptable to you.  Ken stated he could sell that to my
Town.  Karen asked if there should be a sentence in this section that reflects those with



Regional Water District Meeting Minutes – April 1, 2004 -  Page 9

bulk water contracts.  Brian McCarthy stated you don’t want to touch the contract law
part of it.   Ken suggested maybe a separate Memo of Understanding that would identify
that, but not in the Charter.  Ken stated he and Brian could work on the language.  Karen
White agreed because there are quite a few communities that have bulk water contracts
that would be interested.

Ken Massey stated the other item is page 8 item g) these are actually the only two from
my perspective that I would see having a discussion.  I see some issues, first of all if your
are not an elected member of this District are you then legally bound by the Right to
Know, the nonpublic nondisclosure rules.   How can you legally bind someone to those if
they are not an appointed official member of the District?

Jeremy Lamson responded when the Waste District was looking at purchasing the Land
Fill, we had to have several nonpublic sessions in which they invited elected
representatives and local officials from all 10 members of the District to join in the
nonpublic session in addition to regular voting members of the District and everyone who
attended was still bound by the nonpublic session.

Atty Van Loan stated that the Right to Know law doesn’t bind anyone.  Jeremy stated he
was not referring to the Right to Know.   Atty Van Loan stated that the Right to Know
doesn’t require anyone to keep things confidential; it allows you not to reveal it.  It is the
other side of the coin.  There is no affirmative obligation in the Right to Know law to
keep your mouth shut about what happened in nonpublic session.  To the extent that there
is such an obligation that is provided by other general law.  If you invite someone into
nonpublic session and you make a condition of the fact of their presence that they will in
fact keep it confidential, I think that would be enforceable.  Ken Massey asked what
would be the enforcement?  Atty Van Loan stated if a selectmen walks out of a nonpublic
session and starts to speak, he hasn’t violated the Right to Know law, because the Right
to Know law doesn’t require him to keep it confidential.  It just simply says that you
cannot make him reveal it.

Chairperson Peterman stated many communities have ethics and standards for their
boards.  I was always under the impression that a nonpublic session you could not reveal
what was said.  Atty Van Loan it is not the Right To Know law.  Mike Scanlon suggested
that the board can draft up a confidentiality agreement and have everyone sign it and say
if you are going to be at these meetings.  That would be up to the board to decide how to
deal with that.  Brian stated for most of us the binding is the oath of office and your duty
to the community.

Ken Massey stated the second half of that is any meeting is open to the public, whether a
member chooses to bring 20 people with them or not, they would be not be precluded
from attending if it is a public meeting.  The problem becomes, if we set this upright now,
we may be establishing that the minimum size of the meeting room is going to be very
large.  Equally important, a comment that was raised earlier, I can think of a 5-minute
recess as being appropriate, but I could not imaging any sustentative recesses for a couple



Regional Water District Meeting Minutes – April 1, 2004 -  Page 10

of reasons.  The first is that it destroys the continuity of the meeting and secondly, it
could ultimately be disruptive to the meeting.

Brian stated this is one of the ones that we feel strongly about.  What Nashua aims to do
is to create a body of, as yet undetermined nature, but more than one member, which will
direct how the director cast votes.  Originally I had said if they tell the director
beforehand how to vote that is fine, but what do you do if something is amended on the
floor and the amendment may or may not be acceptable to the folks at home.  I think
anyone who tries to do something other than having a single member who has complete
carte blanch with respect to decisions that the BOD will have a problem.  In thinking
about it, this body is going to behave much more like the United Nations than it will like
any of our boards.  There has to be some time to confer prior to casting votes at the BOD.

Ken Massey asked Brian if the BOA would consider a slightly different scenario in that a
motion could be raised at a meeting, but the vote, except for emergencies obviously, the
vote would occur at the next meeting.  Right now I envision this, as it is set-up it is going
to be extremely cumbersome.

Mike Scanlon stated that is worse.  Now you are putting off business for weeks at a time
instead of rather for 5 min.  The intent is that you don’t have to do this.  If the member
sitting at the table feels, I would like to discuss this, and then he can call for a brief recess
subject to the call of the Chair.  The Chair can pull you back to the table, so he has the
right to continue to keep the meeting.    Brian stated that in the normal course of events
that you would do this, but it is something that came up for a vote.  It is when an
amendment is made and you look around and see 5 puzzling faces sitting behind you, you
want to have a recess.

Mike stated that personally he doesn’t have a problem or objection.  We have always
talked that if Nashua wanted to have more delegates that the should be able to confer and
I would rather they confer then to have one guy go off the deep end one day and start
casting crazy ballots.

George Woodbury asked Brian, are you thinking that this would apply to both a director
vote and vote of customer?  Brian stated yes we would want that consensus.

Cynthia Herman asked for clarification, such rules shall not require that motions be
seconded to be in order for action by the board.  Can I have an explanation?

Atty Van Loan stated that the rational for that is that Nashua was concerned that,
although they had control when voting by customer they could be sabotaged by making a
motion and no one seconds it and then they would never be able to exercise their
authority to vote by customer because someone would simply let the motion die. This is
simply designed to allow Nashua to have its authority to control those things that the
Charter allows it to control.  Chairperson Peterman stated that works well for the Towns.
Atty Van Loan it benefits Nashua.  Chairperson Peterman stated that sometime there is a



Regional Water District Meeting Minutes – April 1, 2004 -  Page 11

second just for the sake to allow the discussion, but in fact the second doesn’t agree with
the motion so sometimes it could benefit a community as well as Nashua.

Karen White reminded this committee that we made the decision to vote by customer for
3 specific issues and that was rates, bonding and CIP.  I would hate because of a
technically lack of a second if the good faith from this committee was to allow it.   Fred
Britton and the change in the Charter as well, there are four things decided on vote by
customer.

George Woodbury stated on page 18 item h) reserved to assist to fund reserves for lands
that are deemed important to other communities.  Brian as water supply held for future
use we could add it.  George wanted to add not just water supply but also lands critical to
water supply.  George stated creating reserves. I had suggested at some point that there
could be just as we do with the electric energy rates to have an energy conservation
charge and the sole purpose of which would be to support communities that have a desire
to purchase or acquire lands that important to protection of the water shed.  Mike Scanlon
commented that the argument is to provide for the acquisition, so wouldn’t that allow
them to put money aside.  They don’t have to spend it all in one year.  If we decide we
want to get a million dollars in the bank to buy a piece of property, they could fund that
over a 2-3-4 year period.  Atty Van Loan stated he is not sure what you’re talking about,
your not talking about funding a communities acquisition of property right, you’re talking
about funding the District?

George Woodbury stated there are grant programs you can get if the Town puts up 95%
of the money then someone else puts up the 5%.  Atty Van Loan asked for whose benefit,
for the Town or District?  George stated the Town would make the purchase, but because
the District provided some of the funds, they would be able to put some restrictions
connect with that.  The idea being that it allows us to expand our capacity to purchase
property.  Chairperson Peterman asked the Town of Hollis or the Town?  George stated
as long as the District was helping supply the money for that acquisition, the District then
would be able to place restrictions, covenants or other controls on the use of that land,
such that it would benefit the District.

Atty Van Loan stated if that is what your talking about, how about if we add in e) to
provide for the acquisition, maintenance of conservation of the Districts real property and
rights in other property.  Chairperson Peterman asked if Hollis has done that, it is
different.  Has Hollis put money up for land that is matched, or that got grant money and
someone else that was allowed to put restrictions on that property matched it.  George
stated I know when we buy land there are certain types of land that we purchase for
certain purposes for which we do get funds from other sources to help us pay for it.

Atty Van Loan stated Article12 is just for the purpose of establishing rates, what we
really maybe should say is to have a catch all at the end.  To be able to fund anything that
the District has the power to do under Article 10.  You need to be able to fund anything
that you can do under Article 10.



Regional Water District Meeting Minutes – April 1, 2004 -  Page 12

Chairperson Peterman asked if there are other comments.

George Woodbury stated where they changed page 21 COI item b) it has to reflect the
District.  It cannot just say any person any company or any agency.  That means I cannot
apply for a rebate from Circuit City.

Karen White asked if it goes back to Powers on page 16.  Chairperson Peterman stated it
is self-explanatory.  We are talking about gifts as a member of the BOD for the District.
You may be over reaching.  Cynthia Herman suggested add from any person, company or
agency affiliated with the District.  This is so it confines it to the District.

Chairperson Peterman asked George Woodbury if they statement should read …
Company or agency, affiliated with the District.  Does that make you feel better?

Mike Scanlon responded put in a clause in stating that this is not intended to stop the
District from purchasing or maybe the BOD can override this clause if it is in the best
interest of the District.  Jeremy Lamson said what the proposed language is that we will
not accept any free or preferred services, benefits, gifts or concessions from any person,
company or agency and then add affiliated with the District.  You are clarifying who it is
that they are not suppose to do it with, but your not affecting the changes they are making
to allow you to purchase property if that individual owned it.   Atty Van Loan said that
there should be no problem with George’s recommendation.  George responded, I am
saying no director, alternate or employee of the District shall accept from the District or
any agency of the District any free or preferred services, benefits, gifts or concessions
from any person, company or agency.  Or you could do it at the end or agency associated
with the District.  Which is less language.

Ken Massey stated we are going to get wrapped around the axel on this one because an
employee benefit is health insurance.  Atty Van Loan said it says preferred.  Atty Van
Loan suggested, accept any gifts or free or preferred services, benefits or concessions.
Ken stated his problem is that we are getting into the problem that English language does
all the time.  Does the adjective only apply to the word services, or does it apply to all the
other things?    Mike Scanlon suggested putting the words including, but not limited to
services, benefits.

Ray Peeples stated we have 3-4 items on the table at once.  One of them is the point that
Ken made which is about benefits.  That directors do not receive benefits under the
Charter, nor would they as a director, so that is a mute issue.  The other item is you
weaken this if you say or agency affiliated with the District.  The way you weaken this is
Fred Britton is a director and I want to sway this a little bit so I give the money to a friend
over here who is not affiliated with the District and he gives it to Fred.  The connection is
gone, but the thing happens.  If you leave it as agency.   Chairperson Peterman stated you
have a problem with the wording that says affiliates.   Ray Peeples says it weakens it and
after the Nashua residents were so interested in this COI and they were the people who
beat it to death.  I want to make sure we do not weaken it in anyway.  If your going to be
this director you shouldn’t be taking any of this stuff and that is the bottom line.



Regional Water District Meeting Minutes – April 1, 2004 -  Page 13

George Woodbury commented that I feel it is too broad.  You could say in connection
with your position as a director.  You could say any number of things, but you cannot be
so board that I cannot apply for a rebate from Circuit City.  Chairperson Peterman stated
she would never read it that way.   Chairperson Peterman asked Atty Van Loan if the law
would read it that way.  Atty Van Loan stated the easy way to deal with this, is actually
George supplied the answer, no director, alternate or employee of the District shall, in
connection with his/her official duties and everything else can stay the same.  Ken
Massey commented, and then you do not need the affiliated.

Ken the famous in significant in the next line. Ticket to the Red Sox game usually a value
placed on this $25-$50.  Chairperson Peterman stated we had that discussion and the way
that it was resolved was this way, but if we want to have it again. We got hung up on the
number and we discussed this for a long time.  Atty Van Loan suggested you create a rule
if this becomes an issue or a by-law that clarifies that.  George we have a provision that
the BOD set a COI policy and we would set that there.

Cynthia Herman stated on page 23 Article 18, section 6, just for clarification the RP shall
include a detailed inventory of the Merrimack River watershed basin and the Regional
Water District, anything supplying water to currently what Pennichuck owns is going to
be included in the RP.  Is that what the language says?  Fred Britton said that knows there
was discussion this before there were words like water supply and wetlands and the
discussion centered about being more specific about what the RP should look at and that
is why there is more specific information about groundwater supplies, aquifers, and
surface water supplies, watershed basins, I know they wanted to clarify that more.  That
was the primary purpose behind the change.

Atty Van Loan stated that this was something proposed by Mr. Sansoucy he felt that it
would be helpful in their presentation to the PUC to be able to establish that one of the
responsibilities of the District is to create an inventory.  All this does is to create an
inventory; it doesn’t say anything will happen just to anything.  It is simply to itemize
and inventory all of the potential sources of water to the District system.

Chairperson Peterman asked Cynthia where the concern is?  Cynthia states her concern is
with the word inventory?   If I am counting my inventory and my inventory is my
resources and this seems to be counting resources that may or may not be within the
control of the watershed.  Atty Van Loan that was intended.  Karen White stated a
detailed survey, I get Cynthia’s drift, and inventory implies that it is under your control.
Cynthia stated right.  Karen White stated that is a touchy issue.  George Woodbury stated
he doesn’t agree that is what it implies.  Inventory is just an accounting.    Karen White
asked the committee if they would accept the substitution of survey, a detailed survey.
Ken a list would be betters then a survey.

Cynthia Herman asked if they are doing it purely for the conformation and information of
it, they have no ties to it.  There is no value of the resource to NRPC, there is to the
communities that they are doing it for.



Regional Water District Meeting Minutes – April 1, 2004 -  Page 14

Chairperson Peterman stated she understood what Cynthia is saying, i.e., the aquifer in
Amherst is on private property.  I think the intention is to understand the dynamics of the
water source because water sources don’t stay in communities.  Our aquifer is probably
part of your aquifer and part of Hollis’s, they are connected and interconnected.  Karen
White stated if we are ever going to be able to understand how much water you can take
from aquifer without drawing down an aquifer.  There maybe wells of the District, wells
of two or three Towns, wells of the Merrimack Village District all within the same
aquifer or connected aquifer.  You need to manage your resources so you don’t
negatively impact the aquifers.

Cynthia Herman stated if we follow on, we went from the word inventory to the closing
of that which maybe suitable for future probable drinking water use by the Merrimack
Valley Regional Water District and shall consider any necessary protection.  That sounds
like we are heading towards ownership or control to me.

Atty Van Loan responded that I would feel confident that Mr. Sansoucy would have no
problem with the word survey.  Chairperson Peterman stated I believe I understand were
Cynthia is going.  Ray Peeples stated I see this as a benefit to Milford.  When you look at
what we have for a resource in the watershed (pointing to the map on the board).  You
see how interconnected it is, if you look at it on a regional area, which we have never
done, we have never looked at this whole region, we don’t know what is happening like
that.  What I see happening here, shall consider necessary protection, this fuels the
argument that George has that setting aside monies in the capital reserve account to help
Towns protect watershed.  Whether or not it is part of the District’s watershed, it is part
of the greater, the whole basins watershed that needs protection as well.  It is important
for any community that is growing, such as Milford or Amherst, to know what is an
alternate water supply.  Right now, Merrimack’s new wells are in Hollis.  So the water
that you need for the future may not be within your boundaries or maybe and this may
help you to determine that.  At the very least it is something the individual communities
can use for planning.

Chairperson Peterman asked Cynthia is your concern that the District is going to come to
Milford and say, you need to provide a 1000 ft setback or you cannot do something with
this particular piece of land.   Karen White commented or you cannot sell Milford’s water
from Milford aquifer because the District has put an allocation on it.  I have tried to
explain that they cannot do that, but no one wants to hear that.  Chairperson Peterman
stated they couldn’t do that. I wanted to get to the root of Cynthia’s concerns.  Karen
commented that the people in Milford call to discuss this who is saying these things.
Cynthia asked again what is frustrating.

Karen White stated it is frustrating because I have heard this brought up by people at
meetings and I have asked for people to call and discuss this, because there is no law that
would allow the District to do that.  It is very difficult to debate something when you
cannot get the debate on the table.  Chairperson Peterman stated she understands the
concern, but how can we, turning to Atty Van Loan.  Is it not possible for the District to



Regional Water District Meeting Minutes – April 1, 2004 -  Page 15

do what Cynthia is concerned about? They could come into Milford, Amherst or any
other community and say, look we think you should protect this land better than it is
being protected now.  Either we want to help you buy it, or you should put a warrant on,
or you should change your zoning articles for that particular piece and call attention to
the fact that it is part of a larger system that needs protection if you are not protecting it
already.

Atty Van Loan stated there is no way under they current structure of the Charter or the
Statutory authorization for a Regional Water District that the District can compel a
community to do anything with property that is not owned by the District.

Kathy Hersh stated what is curious is that Pennichuck right now has the power of
eminent domain and can come in and take it by eminent domain because the Regional
Water District does not.  So actually your better off.  Ken asked the question, Pennichuck
can do eminent domain.  Kathy Hersh stated yes.  Karen White stated they are a utility
and all utilities have it except our Regional Water District.  Chairperson Peterman said
they have to go to PUC and make a case.  Mike Scanlon stated the municipality has to
make a case.  George suggested, I would also say that shall consider any necessary
protection.  That is why Hollis has an interest in this because we work jointly together to
determine what the protections are that are necessary to protect all of us.  Ray stated
Litchfield as well would share that with George.

Chairperson Peterman asked the two others from Milford in the audience, one is a
selectmen and the other is on the water committee.  Noreen O’Connell stated this is a
concern that keeps coming up over and over again with the citizens and the Water Dept
employees that we have.  If we have to have those assurances, if we are going to sell this
Charter   Ken stated one of the assurances is in the Charter says that we will not take by
eminent domain any properties of a member of the District.

Cynthia Herman said to that point, it was very clearly put in that it was a member
community that we wouldn’t take the resources of because the goal is to change
legislation so that the water district as the right of eminent domain.  So those very
discussions and the very piece that we are not going to take anything by eminent domain,
we just will not take our member stuff by eminent domain are the very pieces of language
that created the concern in the first place. You just nailed it exactly on the head.
Chairperson Peterman stated we don’t have the authority of eminent domain.

Karen White stated we have talked about going back to the legislature to get it.
Chairperson Peterman said so your saying Milford may not be a member, maybe,
possibility, and therefore this District can come in and take this resource by eminent
domain.  Is that what you are afraid of?   Cynthia Herman stated she is trying to voice an
opinion.  Those are included in the concerns.  Chairperson Peterman asked Cynthia, do
they understand that Pennichuck can come in and take it by eminent domain.   Cynthia
stated she is clear on that.   Kathy Hersh asked Cynthia you keep saying their concerns,
but what about your concerns?   Cynthia stated it is collective, our concerns.  Kathy said



Regional Water District Meeting Minutes – April 1, 2004 -  Page 16

your concerns too.  Cynthia stated my concerns are those that I have had expressed to me
and they become my concerns.
Atty Van Loan stated that one reason that that provision is in the Charter is to provide an
incentive for people to join the District.  Even if the District gets the power of eminent
domain it has agreed that it will not exercise against its own members.  Cynthia following
the skeptical path, the wait a second, we have ours; we are set, why shouldn’t we just put
a fence around it.  When you go from that mind set, the whole point that the language
was put in there just puts up red flags to the point.

Ken Massey made a scenario for Cynthia, when Hudson bought the Southern NH Water
Company; the entire water supply for Hudson came from the wells that you see up on the
wall (pointing to the map).   The growth in the Town is such today that we are now
purchasing from Pennichuck water a significant portion of our water.  Approximately, if I
can remember the numbers now, we are somewhere between 30-40% of our water now
comes from Pennichuck and the primary time that it is coming is in the months between
April and Oct.  What you may think you have today, you may not have capacity to
service everyone 5-10 yrs from now and the value we saw to the Regional Water District
is that it was giving us some additional safety valves.   Cynthia states she understands
that.

Mike Scanlon stated personally you have to look that the Charter that specifically states
that even if the District has right of eminent domain; we cannot take property from the
members.  Our job here tonight is to protect the members.   If a community does not want
to join this District, then I don’t believe we have any obligation when we developed this
Charter to protect their rights.  If they want rights, come to the table, participate and be
part of the District.  If you don’t want any rights, then don’t join the District and if this
District in 20 years from now gets the right for eminent domain, I believe it should have
the right to exercise those powers on to a community that is not a member of the District
if the PUC or whoever decides it is in the public interest.   We cannot lose sight of the
fact that we are developing a Charter for the members.

Chairperson Peterman asked if there is any further explanation needed by the Milford
people.

Noreen O’Connell commented that it is one of those things that I leave here and I say
okay, I understand what everyone is saying and it is very reasonable.  Then, when I sit at
another table and get lambasted with some other information from people that are more
knowledgeable, or I sit over coffee and listen to other citizens who have concerns, that is
when I am wondering if I should be agreeing or not.

Karen White asked Noreen, how do we open those concerns so we are all sitting at one
table.  Noreen said one of the things is to have our public hearing and we intend to do
that.  Karen stated there should be a way before it gets to a public hearing to open a
dialogue on some of these items that are of concern.



Regional Water District Meeting Minutes – April 1, 2004 -  Page 17

Cynthia stated that Milford has been exceedingly involved in this process right from the
beginning we have continued to voice our concerns and we have gotten lambasted for
some of them.  We have gotten an agreement on some.  We have been actively involved
in the process and our citizen rate has been actively watching and observing and listening
and asking questions, to the point we had a warrant article put on and passed by our
Town to study a Water Village District based on what was in the paper and what they
have been listening to for answers and what they have observed out of watching where
this Charter was going.  We will have public hearings and we are also studying all the
options so that we have all the information that we can possibly pull together based on all
of the questions that we have gotten from our community on this very stuff.  We have
done our very best not to egg on the shadow boxing.  We have attempted to keep it right
out on the table that we are going down this path, but we still have this stuff and this stuff
hitting and we have had huge involvement.  We are doing the best that we can and we are
pulling together as much information as fast as we can to accommodate the schedules that
are being created by this body.  I think we have done our job.  We had all of my
selectmen, four of my department heads at the public hearings held by this committee.
We had the top involvement of everybody.

Chairperson Peterman commented that you are still coming back to the issue of the
taking.  I remember Katie mentioning that at the very first public hearing.  I think that we
have consistently said the same thing.  We don’t have eminent domain at all, that is the
first thing, and we cannot do it.  If we did and you are a member, it wouldn’t affect you
either.  I agree with Mike if you are not a member and some time in the future, if the
District gets eminent domain, just like Pennichuck, you would be at risk.  To me it is that
simple.

Cynthia Herman responded using that exact same logic, if it is in the best interest of the
District to take by eminent domain, what is the difference between being a member and
not being a member, aside from that we have decided to be nice to people who have
joined up and are members now.  Your argument falls apart.  Fred Britton responded we
cannot take by eminent domain.  Cynthia responded I know you cannot.  Karen White
stated it violates the Charter.  The Charter, which you sign, says we cannot do it.  Cynthia
stated the logic that is being utilized is strictly for the calming of whoever is going to be a
member now, it is not based on potential need.

Mike Scanlon commented there are two things, I guess one I would hope if you’re a
member of the District and your sitting at the table that you wouldn’t do that to the entire
District.  Secondly, even if you are a member of the District and the Town of Milford
wanted to pump 27 wells into the ground and start sucking water out of the ground as fast
as they could, I don’t believe this District can do anything about that.  I think the
municipality has the right to drill a well.

Chairperson Peterman responded and I am going to go back and maybe I am off base
here, but when Milford had a contaminated well you went to Amherst and you now have
a well that supplies your Town that is in Amherst.  I don’t know that we had to give it to
you or not at the time, I don’t remember the details.  Water crosses everyone’s



Regional Water District Meeting Minutes – April 1, 2004 -  Page 18

boundaries, so what is good for us are good for you.  That is the reason that I think we
were all here to start with to make sure that no one else is going to take our water from
us.

George Woodbury stated we digress a great deal from the fact that all we are doing is
taking an inventory.  We are all drinking out of the same cup.  All we are trying to figure
out is how big is the cup, how much water is going into the cup, how much is each party
taking out of the cup.  What can we expect in the future.  What makes good sense for all
of us?  That is the purpose of the RP, to determine how to manage the cup.  The fact that
your stuff even though it is entirely yours is included as part of that consideration, it is
still part of the same cup and I would think you would want to know that information.

Karen White responding to Cynthia’s other point about, if there is a resource in a Town
that the District desperately needs, won’t they break the Charter to get to it.  I say no, that
is the reason it was put in the Charter.  There are a number of towns that have their own
municipal water system, such as Raymond.  Merrimack has a Village District, Hudson
and Milford.  All of the towns required this to be in the Charter none of them want their
municipality utilities raided.  That is one of the benefits of being a member is a mutual
protection.

Ken Massey responded that is the point that I made to my Hudson board last week.  The
creation of this District would not give the District the ability to take by eminent domain
Hudson’s water utility and it was a selling point to Hudson.

Fred Britton reminded the committee that Atty Van Loan stated a while ago what we can
and cannot do, could you state it one more time.   Atty Van Loan responded that if any
community whether it is Milford or another community has a concern about this, all they
have to do is just take Article 11 and read it, as it couldn’t be clearer.  Karen White
responded, but they are asking couldn’t they break Article 11.  Atty Van Loan stated of
course, you could change the Charter, but we have made it difficult to do that.  Atty Van
Loan stated Article 11 is as clear as it can be and how the question can still come up from
anybody and any community I fail to understand.  Atty Van Loan stated you could argue
the other side of the point, maybe Article 11 isn’t a good idea if you are really interested
in regionalization, but that was a decision that was made that this is a compromise to
protect the individual members and in fact provide an incentive to join.  You cannot have
it both ways, you can’t on the one hand be concerned about a municipal water system
being taken over by the District and then on the other hand worry about if you need a
municipal water system that we cannot take it.  It has to be one way or the other way. The
group has made the decision to the benefit of individual members.  This argue ably can
be to the detriment of the group.

Chairperson Peterman stated I have one more question and then we will put this to bed
for now anyway.   Did you address the concerns with Bill Dresher?  Cynthia stated they
have been through a few of these with Bill and he has not way laid the concerns.  The
overall concerns that we have, he has come back with exactly what the conversation has



Regional Water District Meeting Minutes – April 1, 2004 -  Page 19

been here, which is yes it can go this way and it can go that way, it can be changed, it
may not be changed.  It is trying to read the future and that is the hard part.

Kathy Hersh asked Cynthia, is your concern that Milford may not be a member.   Cynthia
stated she has 14 concerns, and I have no idea, which way Milford is going to go on this.
Kathy said no I am asking you what your concern is as the leader of your community.
Are you concerned that Milford may not be a member?  Kathy stated it seems if you’re a
member there is a lot of protections, but if you’re not a member there are not those
protections.  I guess I am asking is your concern that Milford may not be a member and
therefore your hoping that the Charter better reflects protections for members and
nonmembers.  I am just trying to understand.

Cynthia stated her question with regarding to that specific language is making sure that
all the members are equally acknowledged and when you start getting into resource
allocation, it makes me a little bit nervous because it is going to be a board of how many
communities determining resource allocation and you guys are in charge of that and so it
makes me concerned.

Karen White stated the only resources we can allocate are what the District owns.
Cynthia stated she understands that.

Chairperson Peterman stated we have beaten that to death.  That is the information and if
they would like to write to Atty Van Loan or have Bill Dresher call him.  Nothing is
forever and ever and ever, sure things can happen, sure the Charter can be changed, sure
the members can drop out, but based on the way we have structured it in the immediate
time frame that won’t happen.  The decision that you make in your Town today can be
undone next year or ten years from now, that is the way it is.  We need to move on.

George Woodbury asked if we need any further discussion.  Chairperson Peterman stated
no.  George Woodbury stated he would like to make a motion with the changes that we
adopted tonight that we accept the proposed changes by the City of Nashua.

Mike Scanlon stated there are still some questions that I have from Bedford.  On page 7
Article 6 BOD, I thought we had discussed this and we had a pretty good consensus I
think it is important that the CEO being a member of the board should have the right to
cast one vote and I still personally feel that way.  I think it is important that his opinion is
expressed by his votes and also if there is a tie, I cannot think of a more neutral party to
break a tie than the CEO of the company.  He would be doing what is in the best interest
of the District, because that is who employs him, so I don’t have a problem with him
breaking a tie.  On the other side if it is a tie then the motion fails.  I would like to see us
keep his vote personally.

George Woodbury stated the reason we put the CEO in there with a vote was actually a
concession to Nashua because we figured that the CEO would be most likely to be on the
side of Nashua so this was part of this discussion about how many votes we needed to



Regional Water District Meeting Minutes – April 1, 2004 -  Page 20

have and all that business.  I don’t think it makes a whole lot of difference one way or the
other, I am not arguing for or against.

Ray Peeples stated he seemed to remember us putting it in there as an executive
consideration that we asked this man to be the CEO and on our BOD yet we don’t trust
him to have a vote.  I thought during the conversations that is where we said, well this
guy has the power to be the CEO and on the BOD then we should listen to him and he
should have an opinion.

Kevin Waterhouse asked if there is anyone here to explain the Alderman’s position as to
why they felt this way.

Atty Van Loan stated his understanding of what their position is that they felt it was
unusual to have an employee to have a vote on the board and the employee would have
his/her own particular ax to grind.  There was an inherent conflict of interest by having an
employee casting a vote on executive decisions. I did mention to the board when the issue
was raised that it is certainly not unusual to have the CEO for profit and nonprofit
companies be on the board and have a vote, i.e. a lot of hospitals the president of the
hospital is on the BOD and he or she is also an employee.  That was their position on it.
As Brian articulated tonight, their backup position would be that they would not be
unhappy if the resolution was that the CEO had a vote, unless it was a tiebreaker.

Kathy Hersh irrelevant of Nashua’s opinion, my personal opinion and thought being, one
thing you could consider doing is making this a rule and not in the Charter so that the
BOD could make the decision as to whether the CEO votes.   Atty Van Loan stated who
has voting rights should be articulated in the Charter.

Chairperson Peterman stated that Nashua would be fine with the CEO having a vote, but
not use if a tie.

Jeremy Lamson commented that there is one thing they should not have a vote on.  I
would think the issue in front of you involves the CEO salary or something you wouldn’t
want him to vote on that.  Chairperson Peterman we have that in the COI.

Mike commented to Nashua’s concern that the CEO wouldn’t vote to break a tie that
would mean any vote that was taken that was passed by one vote, that would nullify the
CEO vote, because in theory, he would be breaking a tie.  I think the CEO if he is a
voting member he should vote I don’t think we want a provision in there if it is a tie vote
and it is one that loses by one, does his vote not count.  If it is a vote that loses by one.

Fred Britton stated the position that Brian stated was at a minimum cannot vote to break a
tie.  Mike Scanlon stated in theory if he votes and there is a tie, and you withdraw his
vote, you just broke the tie by removing his vote.  You just said that you don’t want him
to be able to do that, but you did that.  Chairperson Peterman responded no, if he has a
vote.  Mike stated if he votes and it is a tie and you withdraw his vote, you have just
broken the tie by removing his vote.  You just said you don’t want him to be able to do



Regional Water District Meeting Minutes – April 1, 2004 -  Page 21

that, but you did that.  Chairperson Peterman said no.  If he has a vote.  Mike said if he
votes and it is a tie.  Karen White stated he already casted his vote.  Mike stated he is not
the tiebreaker.  If he is a voting member he votes and if he is a nonvoting member, if that
is the way this committee decides.

George Woodbury stated you just pointed out another dilemma and that is, Nashua said
that they don’t want him to break a tie, which pushes the vote one way.  Likewise if he
votes in a way to create a tie he has now pushed the vote.  Now there are two
opportunities for the CEO to create problems for his own benefit.  Perhaps we are better
off not having him vote.

Steve Williams, stated I feel that I come the closest to the position that you are talking
about here and I don’t have a vote on my BOD and I have never seen a Regional Council
where the executive director had a vote on the BOD and I guess my opinion is that the
CEO should not have a vote, that is the safest way.

Chairperson Peterman stated I would like to take a consensus of the committee.

MOTION:  made by Fred Britton to accept the information in Article 6 A as
amended by Nashua.  Seconded by Ray Peeples.  All in favor.  Jeremy
Lamson asked this is the CEO without a vote.  Vote taken 6 – 3.  Motion
passed.

Cynthia Herman asked to go back to page 8 g) Bylaws and Rules.  I need to understand
on g) the piece of not acquiring a second is so that if Nashua wants to accomplish
something they have the opportunity to accomplish it if no other community wants them
to accomplish it.  Atty Van Loan stated right now when Nashua voting by customer
clearly can pass anything they want that is done by voting by customer.  Karen White
stated rates and bonds.  Atty Van Loan of those things that are done voting by customer,
Nashua can control it.  Everybody intentionally agreed that to.  If you impose a
requirement under parliamentary procedure that in order for them to accomplish it they
have to get a second on the motion, now they have just lost their authority.  Now it means
that if they put a motion on the floor in one of those areas, lets say rates and no one
seconds it, now they cannot exercise their vote by customer.   This is designed to
eliminate the parliamentary impediment that would normally apply under traditional
parliamentary rules.

Ray Peeples commented that was a unique circumstance that Alderman Bolton brought
up at the meeting that the Charter committee had with the Aldermen and clearly we had
not thought that one through and this change makes sense based on that.  We did allow
them to do those three things; they should be allowed to do those.

Cynthia stated going to page 8 e) Salary.  Is the point of having that language in there is
so you can have employees of the Towns or BOD?  My question is that opens the door
for those to be alderman or selectmen or anyone is that the point of putting in the waiver?



Regional Water District Meeting Minutes – April 1, 2004 -  Page 22

Atty Van Loan responded the point was if any municipality had already some kind of
local regulation that prohibited certain people from accepting a salary because they serve
in a public position that they could be permitted to serve on this board and waive the
$1,000 salary or service fee.   It was not necessarily directed towards any individual or
any Town or any particular public official but to take care of the issue by waiving the
salary.  Or if an individual wanted to voluntarily waive it.  The implication was, although
I didn’t quite read it that way, that this was some how mandatory that you had to take the
$1,000 dollars.

Jeremy Lamson stated he would tend to agree, that is how I read it to be that you had to
take it and from my perspective, it would be impossible for me, if I ended up being the
Director from Pittsfield that it would be impossible for me to accept it because I would be
attending as part of my duties as town administrator for Pittsfield.

Chairperson Peterman stated good clarification are there any other comments.

Atty Van Loan asked the committee to go to pg 18 Article 12 sub i) to fund the exercise
of any of the Districts other powers authorized by Article 10.

Mike Scanlon commented on page 18 b) Distribution of Funds.  Karen White stated
Nashua proposed it also as well as Bedford.  Chairperson Peterman stated to cover
Hudson's concern a separate Memo of Understanding for communities like Hudson and
other bulk rate users.  Ken Massey stated he would work with Brian to craft such a
document.

Karen White asked about Article 15 page 20, look down below 4) As used in this Article,
“customer” means Customer and any other person, company, corporation, association,
city or Town that receives services from the District.  By having that different definition
there, it basically implies that the Office of Customer Affairs, could #3 determine the
appropriate rate class for a city or town or abate any water rents for a city or town and I
suggest we strike city or town out of there.  I don’t think that was ever the intent.

Ken Massey commented, if you do that, again a town like Hudson if we have a service
problem we wouldn’t be able to exercise our rights under item 4.  I am sensitive to the
issue about rate changes for the whole town, but I wouldn’t want to give up my rights as
a town to be able to take corrective action for a service problem or a billing problem that
the town gets as the result of the bulk water purchase.

Atty Van Loan asked what the concern is.  Karen White said there is an implication that
the Customer Affairs Office under this definition of customer 1) says adjusts individual
service bills.  They can adjust them for a city or town.   Atty Van Loan said the city or
town would have to be the customer.   It could not apply in any case where the city or
town was not the customer, so it could not adjust the rates for 5000 people in the town of
X because it can only adjust the individual customers case by case, not global changes in
rates for groups of customers.



Regional Water District Meeting Minutes – April 1, 2004 -  Page 23

Jeremy Lamson asked Karen, is the issue here that receives services is financially
responsible for such service.  Karen said if you use the definition of customer as
including a city or town then an individual customer could mean an individual city or
town.

Jeremy stated this says the city or town that receives services is financially responsible
for such service.  I would read that to mean that the Town of Pittsfield couldn’t ask under
this definition because we as the town are not financially responsible.

Atty Van Loan said the way it is intended and I am reading the definition of customer
allows the party to make a complaint and go to the Customer Affairs office, but the
Customer Affairs Office, regardless who brings the complaint in, besides customers a
municipality can come in in their behalf or in the behalf of an individual customer, but all
the Consumer Affair Office can do is adjust individual service bills, abate any individual
water rents and determine appropriate rate class for an individual customer.  Karen
individual customer by our definition could be a city or town.   Mike Scanlon asked is the
Town of Hudson an individual customer since they are single.  Atty Van Loan stated yes.
Mike commented so can this Consumer Affairs Office say Hudson you are being charged
too much, we are going to give you a discount.  Chairperson Peterman stated no, because
they have a bulk water rate contract.  Ken Massey said the customer sets the rate for the
bulk water purchase.  That is one of the three items that are set by the board as acting as
customer.  Karen White stated now there is the conflict.  You are using individual as a
replacement for the term customer, but you cannot really do it by the way you define
customer.  Ken Massey stated I don’t think a Town like Hudson should be able to get
their rate changed by the Customer Affairs Office.  Chairperson Peterman says I don’t
think it says that.  Ken Massey said it says determine appropriate rate case for an
individual customer.

George Woodbury stated we had this discussion before and if you recall, we added the
language subject to limits set by the board.  Chairperson Peterman asked where you’re
reading that.  George stated second paragraph next to the last line.  They will adopt their
own rules of procedure, which shall be subject to the approval of the board.  They will
have to put together a plan that addresses these kind of individual issues and the board
will have to approve it and once it is approved, then they have the authority to operate
within those guidelines.

Atty Van Loan suggested if we change it from the Customer Affairs Office to the Office
of Consumer Affairs and in the 1-2-3-4 bullets adjust individual customer service bills,
adjust any individual customer water rents and determine the appropriate rate class for an
individual customer.  Then as used in this article, “consumer” means Customer and all
these other parties.  It works the way I suggested.  A consumer, which is defined as a
customer, plus these other parties can come in and complain, but the Affairs Office only
has the power to adjust individual customer bills, rents, etc.

Jeremy Lamson stated the definition of customer on page 4 is a unit for ordinary billing
or other ordinary receipt and charges.  So therefore a bulk water contract is not an



Regional Water District Meeting Minutes – April 1, 2004 -  Page 24

ordinary charge.  Karen White stated that is not the definition in the section.  Atty Van
Loan stated this still allows the bulk water contract to be effected here that is a separate
problem.  Karen wasn’t addressing that, her concern was that by allowing a municipality
to be a complain tent a customer that the Office of Customer Affairs could adjust the
rates for a whole group of people, that was the concern she was raising.

Ken Massey stated the language you added changing the word customer to consumer
does not change #3, but it is addressed according to what George said, that the BOD will
set the limits.  I would think that the BOD would set a limit that the Consumer Affairs
Office could not change a rate for a class of customers.  They could change the rate for an
individual customer.  They would define in that policy a class of customer would include
bulk water customers.  Karen stated that I am trying to eliminate the ability for the
Consumer Affairs Office to change the bill of an entire town.  Atty Van Loan stated a
customer is a connection.  Karen stated that is not what is days.  Atty Van Loan said we
are going to change that.  The BOD shall establish an Office of Consumer Affairs and all
the way through there it will say consumer, except down in the bullet points, adjust any
individual customer service bills, individual customer water rates, #3 is okay as is, #4 is
okay as is and then as used in this Article, consumer means customer and that works.
Karen stated, but city and town no longer means the same as customer.  City and Town
means a consumer.

Cynthia Herman commented so that means the consumers who are not individual
customers, it leaves them bringing issue to the board?   If the Office of Consumer Affairs
can hear the complaints of consumers, but can only address the issues of customers, then
where do the cities or towns, corporations or associations go?   Atty Van Loan asked
Cynthia to give an example of who is left out?   Cynthia responded if the complaint that
the consumer, as if the Town of Milford goes and says I have a problem with my bill, I
think there is a leak and I think you guys are over charging me for gallons that we used
on X day.  Atty Van Loan stated who?  Cynthia responded the Town of Milford in its
bulk contract.   Atty Van Loan stated it is a consumer and a customer.  Cynthia said so it
is a customer, so it can still have that.  Atty Van Loan stated because it is a customer.
Ken Massey responding to Cynthia is the limits set by the board would not allow the
Consumer Affairs Office to set the rate classification for an entire town, they could only
do it for an individual and they wouldn’t be able to do it for bulk water contracts either.

George Woodbury stated that the board would determine that, but if the Office of
Consumer Affairs determined that the bill was in fact inaccurate or incorrectly calculated,
the board could give them the authority to make the appropriate change.  Ken Massey
stated that is different, that is an individual service bill or an individual water rent.  In
terms of determining what rate you are in, they wouldn’t have the ability to do it based on
the limits that the board would set.

MOTION: made by George Woodbury to accept the changes subject to the
amendments and discussions from this evening as proposed by the City of
Nashua and the Charter committee.  Seconded Kevin Waterhouse.



Regional Water District Meeting Minutes – April 1, 2004 -  Page 25

Atty Van Loan stated he has two other things, on pg 25 d) made after consideration of a
report prepared by the Operations Group detailing the potential impact of the proposed
plan including and 1) is a description of the real property  2)a statement as to whether the
proposed action, in the opinion of the Operations Group conforms to the RP.  Otherwise
the implication is here that if the Operations Group says it doesn’t conform to the plan the
board is bound by it and they obviously should not have that power.  You want the
Operations Group to express its view about whether or not it conforms, but not to control
that decision.

Atty Van Loan stated on pg 28 Article 21.  This obligates the District to make payment in
lieu of taxes to the municipalities in which the District owns real property.  What it does
not do, it does not require the District to make a payment in lieu of taxes to the State of
NH under the new education statewide property tax.  Right now Pennichuck, which is a
private landowner if you will, but it is also a public utility, is required to make payment
to the State.  The Regional Water District would be a municipal entity and will, by law
unless the law was changed, would not be required by law to make payments to the State
for that.  I am informed and this is only by hear say, I cannot verify the accuracy of this
that Pennichuck now pays, approximately $350,000 dollars to the State of NH for the
property that it owns in various municipalities under the statewide property tax.  We need
to make a decision about whether or not you want to hold the state harmless for the
money the State would loose if the Regional Water District acquires the assets of
Pennichuck.  If that happens, unless law does anything differently, you do not have to pay
that tax.  I don’t know the math, but I can tell you as a practical matter that $350,000
dollars that the State would not get under the statewide property tax is a drop in the
bucket as far as what the State collects in statewide property tax across the board and it
falls equally upon all taxpayers.   Assuming that that deficit has to be made up some
where and the State wants to pick up that $350,000 dollars some place else, it doesn’t fall
disproportionately on the tax payers of Nashua or any other municipality in which this
property lies because the taxes go to the State not to the municipality.  So in fact the lack
of money that the State gets affects the taxpayers of Colebrook in the same way that it
affects the taxpayers of Nashua.  This is something that needs to be a conscious decision
on your part, so I throw it out for your consideration.

Fred Britton stated more information from Mr. Sansoucy mentioned that when they go to
the PUC this will come out this issue and the PUC.  He also mentioned that Manchester
and Hudson do not pay state utility tax.  As far as we are concerned, we don’t want to pay
it either.  From Nashua point of view if they losing 70% of that because of our ratepayers,
I don’t think we want to give them back $245,000 dollars when they have taken over 7
million away from us, they have taken enough.

Ray Peeples stated I see no reason why this Charter should set a precedent and if we are
giving the money back to the State and we have two other utilities that are not and they
are in the same classification we would be.   Mike reality is the state will make legislation
to get it back.  Ken stated the reason why we don’t do it is, we were not doing it before
the statewide property tax law was put in place, so we were not bound before and since



Regional Water District Meeting Minutes – April 1, 2004 -  Page 26

the State did not mandate we wouldn’t have to do it.  To be consistent with what Ray is
saying, we wouldn’t want to set a precedent for this entity.

Atty Van Loan stated the technical problem is if you write into the Charter that the state
is held harmless in this situation, you are buying a pig and a poke because you have no
idea what that might entail.  You know what it is today because you can find out what the
bill is, but if you were to write in a blanket requirement that the Water District would pay
whatever is imposed at any time in the future upon a landowner and you would be treated
like a private landowner, even though you are a municipal entity.  You pick up whatever
the State would pass by virtue of the Charter and you have no idea what that would be.

Karen White suggested we should consider our contribution to our local schools and our
willingness to pay property taxes even though technically we don’t have to, we wrote that
into our Charter.   Chairperson Peterman commented so I guess that is our answer.
George the way it is written right now and the plan is not to be modifying the Charter in
the future, the one thing you may want to consider is putting something in there saying
the board may at any time it deems appropriate in the best interest of the District, offer to
pay in lieu of taxes to the State.  Karen stated no.

Chairperson Peterman stated we still have a motion on the table.

Fred Britton reminded the committee to make sure that when we vote on this we voting
on amendments that are put forth this evening, remember that Nashua has not officially
decided what it is going to do in terms of our representation.  The Charter reads one
voting rep and one alternate.

Chairperson Peterman asked if there was any other discussion.

MOTION:  Vote taken- All in favor.

Chairperson Peterman stated that some Towns, like Hudson has accepted the original
Charter.  Ken Massey stated correct.  Chairperson Peterman responded that you are going
to hold a public hearing.  Ken Massey stated that the selectmen accepted the Charter as
written with the knowledge that there would be amendments brought forward tonight and
the expectation I laid was that given what I knew from the Aldermanic meeting, I didn’t
see anything that would prompt me to tell them no, except for the governing issue.  The
only other thing that I now need to be clear on, and I will work with Brian on that, is a
Memo of Understanding for bulk water purchasers and Cynthia may want to be involved
in that if you are doing bulk water purchases.  We need to clarify the issue about revenue
sharing that is not going to happen for bulk water purchaser.  I will see Brian and we can
work something out.  I don’t know how you would clarify that Atty Van Loan, as it
would not be part of the Charter, but it would be a document that is embedded in the
governance of the District.  Karen White stated part of the financial policy.  Atty Van
Loan stated one way would be for Hudson to wait and join to the District after the
agreement is written.  Then the board would take a vote that they agreed to enter into that
relationship with Hudson.



Regional Water District Meeting Minutes – April 1, 2004 -  Page 27

Chairperson Peterman stated we are now waiting for Nashua with any further changes to
the governance of this body, should we set another meeting date.  Chairperson Peterman
asked Fred Britton when Nashua board was meeting again?  Kathy Hersh responded that
the full board will meet April 13th and the committee asked last night to meet with the
mayor before a decision is made and the mayor will be back on the 12th.

Mike Scanlon stated this is more of a question for the entire committee, the sense I got
when we met with the Aldermen, I don’t think anyone here is going to be receptive to a
change in the governance.  I think the ability for Nashua to have all the representation
present at the meetings and be able to stop the meeting and confer with one another
before they vote, I don’t believe that I would be supportive of changing it.  If the
consensus here is that we are not going to be supportive, would it not be appropriate that
we pass a motion tonight and send that to the Aldermen and make sure they understand
that this is not something that the committee is most likely willing to favor.  I think we
have done a lot of work here, and we have made a lot of concessions and I just don’t see
how Nashua having 3 people voting by board on a 14-member board should be the death
mill to this whole thing.

Ray Peeples commented going back to the public hearing issue; Litchfield has not had a
public hearing.  I postponed it based on not having a Charter; I couldn’t offer a piece
meal document to the public.  I know as a board internally in our discussions the change
in governance would be a no starter for Litchfield.

Ken Massey stated that Hudson feels that way to, it is a nonstarter.   Chairperson
Peterman stated she would say the same for Amherst.

Atty Van Loan stated when he met with Nashua BOA and committee Monday night,
again I told them I had no authority to speak for any of you and I was just expressing my
opinion about things, but I did state to them on several occasions during the course of that
meeting that it was my opinion that that would be a serious issue for the group.  My
understanding was that the group felt that #1 Nashua had been permitted to have
supermajority voting power on those important issues to the Nashua ratepayers and that
was a substantial concession by the towns and that the notion of Nashua having
additional representation on the day-to-day business of the water district was probably
something, I will use the same words that Ken did, I think you said a nonstarter, I will use
the same term.   I don’t know whether the politics of the situation are better that you take
a vote or that you don’t take a vote, but it will not be of any surprise to the Nashua BOA
if that is the way everyone feels whether you do it formally or informally.

Fred Britton stated he wanted to express that there are 5 new members on the BOA and
talking to Brian McCarthy about it, he is not sure what direction they are taking.  There
are several members that want to see more representation in Nashua.  Both Brian and
myself feel it is a fair agreement and Nashua has control over the important items in the
Charter.  He cannot tell you how 14 other aldermen are going to vote.  At the end of the



Regional Water District Meeting Minutes – April 1, 2004 -  Page 28

meeting last night Brian was trying to have them put something forth and it was put off
until the Mayor could be there.  They did not act on it.

Chairperson Peterman stated we understand that there is a consensus from the discussion
around the table that the organizational structure is a nonstarter.  Again with the
concession that there can be a delegation representing the Water commission from
Nashua that is the indication.

Ken Massey stated there are two things not only did we include the language, but we also
added no second is required by total customer base who would be enable.   There is not
going to be a possibility for any town for Nashua who put anything on the table that
would be an obstruction.  I am a firm believer if it isn’t written it didn’t happen. It would
carry far more weight if we had a vote and a letter sent to the BOA with our position.  In
writing they would know what this board is on the record.

MOTION:  The Regional Water District inform the Nashua Board of
Aldermen and the Office of the Mayor that the board is on record that the
current governing model in Article 6, representation is the only acceptable
condition for creation of this Charter.  Seconded by Mike Scanlon.

Fred Britton stated this might put undue pressure on the Board of Alderman.  Kathy
Hersh stated that she and Barbara Pressley could tell Brian they feel pressure that the
committee is not going to support changes.  We can put on that there is near unanimous
support.  Some of them feel pressure by the District.  I don’t feel it is not necessary to put
it in writing but we can make sure they are aware of it.

Barbara Pressley asks the committee that you keep an open mind.  The Nashua Board of
Alderman are truly struggling with this.  There is a lot of pressure from the citizens.  It
doesn’t make any sense to have one person at the table.  This idea brought up tonight
with calling 5 minute recesses, I don’t know how awkward that is going to be.  I am not a
player at the table.  I have always been a secondary player.  A lot of people feel very
strongly that one person representing 75-80% of the people of Nashua doesn’t make any
sense.  There is also an argument with the Board of Alderman that if only one person may
represent Nashua that, that person has to be the Mayor or the Public Works Director.
They feel it should be someone with immediate resources to make decisions for 75-80%
of the people.  If you do send this letter it may backfire on your committee.

Ray Peeples addressed the committee commenting that he thinks the committee should
hold off on the letter.   I must admit I was impressed with the Nashua changes.  I told our
board that this was the last night that we are going to be looking at it.  We have been
keeping an open mind.  I know the governing issue for our town is a no starter.  We will
be there at the eminent domain hearing.  I don’t think we should send a letter to put the
Aldermen on notice we have appealed to the City of Nashua.  It does give Nashua the
power and leverage.  You need someone with a little common sense who takes direction
from the community.  The alderman is going to do what they want to do.



Regional Water District Meeting Minutes – April 1, 2004 -  Page 29

Fred Britton stated that Nashua is still talking about its representation.  They are still
hashing over whether it will be an elected or appointed position and I don’t know what
the bottom line will be.  Brian and I spoke about our position last night and he talked
about having a 3-5-7-9 person elected or appointed committee and they haven’t decided
how that committee will advise the primary rep and the alternate rep if they agree with
that.  They are talking about having an advisory committee who will make a decision and
it represents a committee’s opinion.

Mike Scanlon stated on second thought, I don’t want Nashua to feel that we are holding a
gun their head, but I feel they are holding it to our head.  On April 14th the Town of
Bedford is going to look at this Charter and vote to join the District.  If the Nashua
Alderman haven’t heard loud and clear this committee’s stand on the governing body
model, as they are still taking about changing it whether we accept it or not, the
consensus of this committee has already voted.  Unless Nashua deludes their power, I
don’t know that I would accept 5 reps at the table and casting one vote we don’t need to
change this.  Let’s move forward that this committee is unified and we have made these
concessions and we have accepted their changes tonight.

Cynthia echo what Ray said to add to that because we have no idea what the alderman
will come back with we must hear what they come back with.  We have been so long at
this process to not hear the rest of Nashua’s position.  We know that they have heard this
committee’s position.  I think we need to hear what their solution is and what their
response is going to be.  I don’t see how the District moves forward without them.

Steve from NRPC stated I would support Cynthia, the Aldermen know where this
committee stands.  My concern is if the people on the Board of Aldermen feel they are
being backed into a corner they may not act rationally.  Over the course of the years, my
position has been in dealing with municipalities and you never want to back a board into
a corner.  I think they know and you let them take their action and see what comes out.

Jeremy stated personally I feel we wait and hear what Nashua has to say and hope they
have something to present to us before the next meeting date.

Chairperson Peterman said that is where I was going.  They are moving forward with
their action with the PUC.  They want to complete this as soon as they can.  I have the
dates listed it is just a matter of deciding.

Kathy Hersh stated that Brian and she had this discussion this morning what if this issue
came up with the committee tonight and earlier I was on the side of sending the letter,
Brian was on the side of not sending a letter.

Chairperson Peterman as a representative for my Town and after listening to the
discussion I suggest we wait for Nashua to come back.

Ken Massey stated we have been sitting with this governing issue on the table since Day
1, but in Oct when we came up with this compromise it has been clear since Day 1 it was



Regional Water District Meeting Minutes – April 1, 2004 -  Page 30

the acceptable governing model for the Towns.  Three of the most critical elements of
this District are totally controlled by a single entity.  When I say fish or cut bait.  If we
don’t set the expectations with Nashua’s Board of Alderman and if they don’t come back
with another suggestion, they need to hear from the committee that this is the governing
model.

Chairperson Peterman stated the message is with or without a letter the governing body;
the representation for the BOD is a nonstarter.  We have had an open mind that the
concessions that were made here are all in Nashua’s favor.

Atty Van Loan offer a suggestion, which is certainly not a legal opinion, I am sensitive
over notions when you back someone into a corner, as being a part of negotiations.  A
suggestion rather than taking a formal vote which is official that it tends to get peoples
dander up, why doesn’t everyone who feels inclined to send an e-mail to Brian about
your views and what your communities views are.  That will give him the ammunition
that he needs to give the Board of Alderman about how you feel without a formal vote,
which says Nashua, you must do this or there will be no tomorrow.

Karen White asked quickly about dates for the next meeting

Fred Britton stated that the legal consultants including Atty Van Loan have spoken in
favor of the Charter and Nashua’s interest.  Part of the decision to put it off last night was
political he wanted to hear the Mayor and explain his position.  Barbara Pressley stated it
was 10 p.m. at night.

Kathy Hersh thanked Atty Van Loan for coming to the meeting because that made a huge
difference.

Ken Massey stated the worst thing is to vote on this motion and it fails.  If Mike would
agree to withdraw his second on the Motion, I will withdraw the Motion.  If it fails it
would be interpreted wrongly.  Ken stated he would withdraw the motion.

Chairperson Peterman stated how is Thursday, April 22nd at 6:30 p.m. for another
meeting.

Ken Massey asked if there are other communities other than Hudson and Milford that
does bulk water.  Karen White stated not here at the table.

Noreen O’Connell stated the DPW in the Town of Milford is concerned with trying to
keep local control and now all of a sudden these other things come up it is not with the
actual water but it is with the control of the business aspect of it.  Fred Britton stated as
part of the analysis and work that is being performed to go to the PUC to prove it is in the
public’s best interest to purchase statement of work that will ask for management services
like Pennichuck water services are doing now.



Regional Water District Meeting Minutes – April 1, 2004 -  Page 31

Karen White stated that the PUC is going to be interested in how the system is operated,
and any management company if the District decides to have a management company,
that will have to be voted on and no decision can be made without the District.

Barbara Pressley mentioned that in November she attended a Conference with the water
people in Miami, Florida and that there major concern is that the City paid a fortune and
outsourced and there are now union battles have the service piece be purchased by a large
group this is one of my major concerns all along that this could happen.  If you sign any
contract with out of state ownership.  We got into this fight because we did not want an
out of state corporation to buy this if we allow the day to day operations to be out of state
what have we gained.  Based on Lexington KY and the grief they are having.  They are
so discouraged it has been a nightmare to them to have the service contract out of state.

Chairperson Peterman asked if there are any other comments from the committee.

Kevin Waterhouse stated that Pennichuck has been asked to present at the meeting in
Windham on April 12th if anyone is interested in attending.

MOTION:  made by Mike Scanlon to adjourn.  Seconded by Ken Massey.

Meeting adjourned at 9:50 p.m.

Submitted by:  Jane O’Brien
#17353


